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CITY OF SANTA BARBARA


COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT

AGENDA DATE:
May 22, 2012
TO:
Mayor and Councilmembers

FROM:
Planning Division, Community Development Department

SUBJECT:
Professional Services Agreement For Safety Element Update

RECOMMENDATION:
That Council authorize the Assistant City Administrator to execute a Professional Services Agreement with Rodriguez Consulting, Inc., in the amount of $101,171 (including up to $9,197 in contingency funds for extra services if deemed necessary) for preparation of the General Plan Safety Element update.

DISCUSSION:
Background

The Safety Element of the General Plan is a State-mandated element that characterizes physical hazards (e.g., seismic/geologic, wildfire, flooding, hazardous materials, accident risks) and identifies policies and programs to minimize these hazards for the existing population and new development.

The current City Safety Element has not received a comprehensive update since its adoption in 1979. The recent Plan Santa Barbara General Plan Update was focused primarily on land use, housing, and growth management, with the expectation that other Elements of the General Plan would be updated in subsequent planning phases. State law also now requires periodic updates of all city Safety Elements. Receipt of federal grant funding for this work allows the City to proceed with the update at this time.

Project Description

The new Safety Element would incorporate updated hazards information, updated policies and programs, and results of several technical studies of seismic, wildfire, and hazardous materials issues (Attachment A – Safety Element Scope of Work Summary). The planning process for this Element update will include public review of a draft Element, State agency reviews for geologic and wildfire issues, Planning Commission public hearing and recommendation, and City Council consideration for adoption.

Consultant Selection

A City request for proposals (RFP) was sent to a range of qualified firms. Proposals received were reviewed and rated by a staff committee based on proposal responsiveness to the City RFP and scope of work; project manager and team qualifications; local knowledge and experience; budget; and schedule. 

The proposal by Rodriguez Consulting, Inc., teamed with Campbell Geo, Inc. was rated highest and is recommended by the proposal review committee. A draft contract has been prepared, reviewed for form and content, and agreed to by the firm.
The firms of Rodriguez Consulting and Campbell Geo are both located in Santa Barbara. Rodriguez Consulting has extensive local knowledge and experience preparing both planning and environmental documents. Campbell Geo has expertise and extensive local experience analyzing geotechnical and hydrological conditions.

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

On October 4, 2011, Council accepted federal HUD grant funding for the Safety Element update as part of the Disaster Relief Initiative (DRI) grant in follow-up to recent wildfires affecting the City. This professional services agreement will be fully funded by the grant funding, which has already been appropriated.

In addition to this professional services work for the Safety Element update, the grant funding received will support associated technical studies identified in the grant scope of work, to be overseen by the Fire Department (wildfire foothill evacuation routes; tsunami coastal evacuation routes; wildfire operational safety areas; hazardous materials GIS data base update) and Public Works Department (vapor barrier study); and staff oversight and CEQA review for the Safety Element update.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:  

The new Safety Element will provide updated hazards information and policies that will support the existing community and new development in avoiding and minimizing public safety risks from natural and man-made hazards, and planning for disaster response and community resilience.

ATTACHMENT:
Safety Element Scope of Work Summary
PREPARED BY:
Barbara Shelton, Project Planner/ Environmental Analyst
SUBMITTED BY:
Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator
APPROVED BY:

City Administrator's Office

Note: The draft contract and proposal has been provided in the Council reading file.
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